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Dear Kevin 

Exposure Draft ED 230 – ED/2012/4 - Classification and Measurement: 

Limited Amendments to IFRS 9 

 

Grant Thornton Australia Limited (Grant Thornton) is pleased to provide the Australian 

Accounting Standards Board with its comments on ED 230 which is a re-badged copy of 

the International Accounting Standards Board's (the Board) Exposure Draft Classification 

and Measurement: Limited Amendments to IFRS 9 (the ED).  We have considered the ED, 

as well as the accompanying draft Basis for Conclusions. 

Grant Thornton’s response reflects our position as auditors and business advisers to the 

Australian business community. We work with listed and privately held companies, 

government, industry, and not-for-profit organisations (NFPs).  This submission has 

benefited with input from our clients, Grant Thornton International which will be finalising 

a global submission to the IASB by its due date of 28 March 2013, and discussions with key 

constituents.  

We welcome the ED and are broadly supportive.  

Our detailed comments set out in the Appendix to this letter. 

If you require any further information or comment, please contact me. 

Yours sincerely  

GRANT THORNTON AUSTRALIA LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

Keith Reilly 

National Head of Professional Standards

Mr Kevin Stevenson 
Chairman 
Australian Accounting Standards Board 
PO Box 204, Collins Street 
WEST VICTORIA 8007 
 
By Email: standard@aasb.gov.au 
  

13 February 2013 
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A. IASB Comments on specific proposals 

Question 1 

Do you agree that a financial asset with a modified economic relationship between 

principal and consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk could be 

considered, for the purposes of IFRS 9, to contain cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest? Do you agree that this should be the case if, and 

only if, the contractual cash flows could not be more than insignificantly different 

from the benchmark cash flows? If not, why and what would you propose instead? 

Question 2 

Do you believe that this Exposure Draft proposes sufficient, operational application 

guidance on assessing a modified economic relationship? If not, why? What 

additional guidance would you propose and why?  

Question 3 

Do you believe that this proposed amendment to IFRS 9 will achieve the IASB’s 

objective of clarifying the application of the contractual cash flow characteristics 

assessment to financial assets that contain interest rate mismatch features? Will it 

result in more appropriate identification of financial assets with contractual cash 

flows that should be considered solely payments of principal and interest? If not, 

why and what would you propose instead? 

These proposals have been developed with the aim of providing relief for certain types of 

financial instruments which would be classified at fair value under the current requirements. 

However, this relief is very restrictive and, arguably, amounts to little more than a 

clarification or application of materiality.  We also understand that the changes would not 

solve the problems in certain regulated markets where interest rates are set by a regulator or 

government agency without regard to a market-based link between interest rates and 

maturities. One prominent example of this is Chinese mortgage bonds where the interest 

rate is reset every 6 months by reference to the 2 year government rate.  

Our view is that while the proposals are consistent with the IASB’s depiction of interest as 

being compensation for the time value of money and credit risk, it may be necessary to 

think more flexibly about this topic. As currently drafted the proposals would mean that all 

Chinese mortgages would need to be accounted for at fair value. Given the decreased 

probability of the United States adopting IFRS and the importance of China as an economy, 

we suggest that it is politically important for the IASB to find a solution to this problem in 

order to encourage China to adopt IFRS. 

Question 4 

Do you agree that financial assets that are held within a business model in which 

assets are managed both in order to collect contractual cash flows and for sale 

should be required to be measured at fair value through OCI (subject to the 

contractual cash flow characteristics assessment) such that: 
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a interest revenue, credit impairment and any gain or loss on derecognition are 
recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets 
measured at amortised cost; and 

b all other gains and losses are recognised in OCI? 

If not, why? What do you propose instead and why? 

Question 5 

Do you believe that the Exposure Draft proposes sufficient, operational application 

guidance on how to distinguish between the three business models, including 

determining whether the business model is to manage assets both to collect 

contractual cash flows and to sell? Do you agree with the guidance provided to 

describe those business models? If not, why? What additional guidance would you 

propose and why? 

We acknowledge that in forming these proposals, the IASB has sought to address concerns 

from constituents.  These include insurers, who are concerned that IFRS 9 as currently 

drafted would result in a mismatch between some insurance liabilities, for which re-

measurements attributable to interest rate movements would be via OCI under the revised 

insurance accounting proposals, and the assets held to back these liabilities, which would be 

measured at fair value through profit or loss. Also, some banks are concerned that their 

liquidity portfolios would be forced into FVTPL under existing IFRS 9.   

The introduction of a third measurement category however will: 

 add complexity to IFRS 9 as a result of having two boundaries to the classification 
decision rather than one, making classification decisions more difficult and thereby 
defeating one of the original objectives of the project  

 create the need for recycling of balances from OCI to profit or loss on impairment, 
potentially compromising IFRS 9’s one impairment model  
 

In assessing whether the benefits of a third measurement category outweigh these 

disadvantages, we suggest that the views of investors and preparers should be given priority.  

We also suggest that the IASB should downplay the importance of convergence with US 

GAAP in making their decision given that the FASB is likely to adopt different impairment 

requirements to the IASB, meaning that their respective measurement approaches will differ 

in any case. 

Question 6 

Do you agree that the existing fair value option in IFRS 9 should be extended to 

financial assets that would otherwise be mandatorily measured at fair value through 

OCI? If not, why and what would you propose instead? 

We agree that the existing fair value option in IFRS 9 should be extended to financial assets 

that would otherwise be mandatorily measured at fair value through OCI. 
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Question 7 

Do you agree that an entity that chooses to early apply IFRS 9 after the completed 

version of IFRS 9 is issued should be required to apply the completed version of 

IFRS 9 (i.e. including all chapters)? If not, why? Do you believe that the proposed 

six-month period between the issuance of the completed version of IFRS 9 and when 

the prohibition on newly applying previous versions of IFRS 9 becomes effective is 

sufficient? If not, what would be an appropriate period and why? 

We agree that prohibiting entities from newly applying previous version of IFRS 9 after the 

completed version of IFRS 9 is published will increase comparability between entities. We 

therefore support the proposal. 

Question 8 

Do you agree that entities should be permitted to choose to early apply only the ‘own 

credit’ provisions in IFRS 9 once the completed version of IFRS 9 is issued? If not, 

why and what do you propose instead? 

We agree that entities should be permitted to choose to early apply only the own credit 

provisions in IFRS 9 once the completed version of IFRS 9 is issued. 

Given the problems surrounding the endorsement of IFRS 9 in Europe, however, and the 

concern that many hold over the current treatment of own credit provisions under IAS 39, 

we believe a similar amendment should also be made to IAS 39 now, so as to allow entities 

to apply this change under the current standard as well. 

Question 9 

Do you believe there are considerations unique to first-time adopters that the IASB 

should consider for the transition to IFRS 9? If so, what are those considerations? 

We are not aware of any considerations unique to first-time adopters that the IASB should 

consider. 

  



 

 

 

 
 

5 

 

B. AASB invitation to comment questions 

 

Question 1  

Whether there are any regulatory issues or other issues arising in the Australian 

environment that may affect the implementation of the proposals, particularly any 

issues relating to: 

a not-for-profit entities; and 

b public sector entities – including any implications for GAAP/GFS 
harmonisation. 

We are not aware of any regulatory issues. 

Question 2 

Whether, overall, the proposals would result in financial statements that would be 

useful to users. 

We agree that the proposals would result in financial statements that would be useful to 

users. 

Question 3 

Whether the proposals are in the best interests of the Australian economy. 

We agree that the proposals are in the best interests of the Australian economy. 

Question 4 

Unless already provided in response to specific matters for comment 1 – 3 above, the 

costs and benefits of the proposals relative to the current requirements, whether 

quantitative (financial or non-financial) or qualitative. 

We have no further comment. 


